
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
7HIRTY-F!RST SESSION 

Officwl Records* 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 66th MEETING 

Chairman: Mr. ~illNDOZA (Philippines) 

CONTENTS 

SIXTH COMMITTEE 
66th meeting 

held on 
Wednesday, 8 December 1976 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

AGENDA ITEM 112: IMPLEMENTATION BY STATES OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE VIENNA CONVENTION 
ON DIPLOMATIC RELATIONS OF 1961: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) 

AGENDA ITEM 109: REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON RELATIONS WITH THE HOST COUNTRY 
(continued) 

*This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be incorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief, 
Official Records Editing Section, room LX-2332. 

Corrections will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

76-91693 

[AI~i.• 1 .~; 1976 

l_lli!LS.1, C_QLLECJJ9J~ 

fCow~~ DO NOT RG,\OVE 
FROM ROOM 

L-201 lWWRRl· .__ .J 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C .6/31/SR.66 
13 December 1976 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: SPANISH 

/ ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
English 
Page 2 

The meeting vras called to order at ll a.m. 

AGENDA ITEM 112: IMPLEivlENTATION BY STATES OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE VIENNA 
CONVENTION ON DIPLOMATIC RELATIONS OF 1961: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL 
(A/31/145 and Add.l; A/C.6/31/L.l6) (continued) 

l. Mr. SZELEI (Hungary) said that his delegation regarded the item under 
consideration as one of great significance for the international community. It 
noted with satsifaction that the previous year's debate on the same item and the 
comments of States (A/31/145 and Add.l) in response to the invitation in General 
Assembly resolution 3501 (XXX) had reaffirmed its belief that the Vienna Convention 
had proved its value as one of the most vital international instruments of recent 
times. The strict implementation of the provisions of that Convention and the 
widest possible participation in it would therefore provide the most appropriate 
framework for the performance by diplomatic missions of their duties. 

2. The Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations of 1961 required the broadest 
possible acceptance by States since some of the basic norms of international 
relations among sovereign States were derived from the provisions of that 
Convention. His delegation urged all States which had not yet done so to accede 
to it. Moreover, the strict implementation of the Convention by all States was 
a vital necessity, since non-observance of its provisions seriously endangered 
the very functioning of diplomatic missions. The Hw1garian People's Republic, 
which had always supported all efforts aimed at ensuring the implementation of all 
the provisions of the Vienna Convention, a position which was reflected in his 
Government's response (A/31/145) to the invitation extended by the Secretary
General pursuant to resolution 3501 (XXX), wished to draw the Committee's attention 
to recent violations of that Convention. 

3. His delegation firmly supported the constructive proposal of the USSR 
concerning the desirability of elaborating an additional protocol concerning the 
status of the diplomatic courier. The question of maintaining appropriate 
communications between States and their diplomatic missions was undoubtedly of 
great importance and it should accordingly be solved as soon as possible, as was 
proposed by the USSR. In his opinion, the provisions of articles 27 and 40 of . 
the Vienna Convention needed to be developed by more precise provisions concern1ng 
the status of the diplomatic courier, which should be elaborated on the basis of 
those articles. He went on to quote some paragraphs from his Government's reply 
which stated that, although the Vienna Convention of 1961 regulated the status of 
the diplomatic courier, it did not cover all aspects in need of regulation and 
clarification and that, since its conclusion, several other conventions had come 
into being, such as the Vienna Convention of 1963 on Consular Relations, the 
Convention of 1969 on Special Missions, and the Convention of 1975 on the 
Representation of States in Their Relations with International Organizations of 
a Universal Character, all of which contained certain provisions on the status of 

; ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr. Szelei, Hungary) 

the diplomatic courier that it would seem advisable to integrate into a uniform 
system. In addition, his delegation would also welcome the elaboration of rules 
on the status of the diplomatic bag not accompanied by a diplomatic courier, as 
some States had suggested in their replies to the Secretary-General. 

4. His delegation believed that the International Law Commission would be the 
most appropriate and competent forum to study the question of elaborating an 
additional protocol on the status of the diplomatic courier, in a preliminary or 
experimental way. It also believed that, in the meantime, the General Assembly 
should continue to invite Member States to submit their observations and comments 
on the question, since even those States which did not as yet utilize the services 
of the diplomatic courier would undoubtedly recognize the usefulness and increasing 
importance of that institution. The foregoing remarks explained why his delegation 
had joined the sponsors of draft resolution A/C.6/3l/L.l6. 

5 · Mr. 1'1Afi.S GEESTERANUS (Netherlands) said that his delegation had concurred in 
the consensus with which General Assembly resolution 3501 (XXX) had been adopted 
but, in an explanation of vote, it had expressed its doubts concerning the 
advisability of studying the question of the diplomatic courier. Because of that 
reservation made the previous year, his delegation felt obliged to comment on the 
follow-up draft resolution now proposed in document A/C.6/3l/L.l6, confining its 
remarks to the question of the diplomatic courier. 

6. His delegation had carefully studied the comments and observations submitted 
by 15 Members (A/31/145 and Add.l) on which the aforementioned draft resolutio~ was 
based, and it was in agreement that the scope of the question should be broadened 
to include the diplomatic bag not accompanied by a diplomatic courier, in 
accordance with one of the observations made. It had also noted that the request 
for a study, in operative paragraph 4 of the draft resolution, had been limited
in his opinion unduly limited - to the study of proposals on the elaboration of a 
protocol, thus excluding other proposals such as those made by the Government of 
the Netherlands that practical measures be devised to promote the smooth 
functioning of diplomatic courier services, which, by their very nature, were not 
easy to incorporate in a protocol or other international convention. 

7. Those Governments which had proposed the elaboration of a protocol had not 
made it clear, either in their written observations or in the current debate, what 
actual difficulties diplomatic courier services experienced as they functioned at 
present without the proposed additional provisions. Mention had, admittedly, been 
made of cases of non-observance of the Vienna Convention of 1961, but non-observance 
of an existing privilege did not in itself justify the creation of additional 
privileges. In the view of his delegation, the observations so far received from 
Member States convincingly demonstrated the desirability of a study of the 
question. 

I ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
English 
Page 4 

(Mr. Haas Geesteranus, Hetherlands) 

8. Furthermore, replies had been received from only one tenth of the membership 
of the United IJations and only three replies were from non-European States. In 
the opinion of his delegation, the Committee would be well advised not to adopt 
the decision proposed in operative paragraph 4 of the draft resolution. On the 
other hand, his delegation would agree to the renewal of the invitation to Member 
States in paragraph 3, and would at the same time suggest to the sponsors of the 
draft resolution that that paragraph be supplemented by a reference to the 
desirability of proposing practical measures to promote the smooth functioning o~ 
diplomatic courier services. 

9. Mr. BUBEN (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Renublic) said that his delegation's 
position on the implementation of the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations 
of 1961 had been set forth in its reply to the Secretary-General (A/31/145). The 
Byelorussian SSR had also been a sponsor of resolution 3501 (XXX) adopted by the 
General Assembly on the same item the previous year. There was no doubt that the 
progressive development and codification of international law should effectively 
contribute to the strengthening of the legal foundations of international relations 
among States with different social systems and that that vras one of the most 
important functions of the United Nations. 

10. The Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Helations of 1961, which regulated a very 
important area of international relations, could play a very effective role in 
promoting international peace and detente, and had served as a model for a series 
of international agreements in other areas. The Vienna Convention had already 
been ratified by 120 States and, in the 12 years since it had entered into force, 
extensive experience had been gained in its implementaiton. His delegation 
believed that there was no obstacle preventing the Convention from becoming 
universal, which it was not yet, and that the United Nations should take action 
to increase the number of States parties to the Convention to the maximum extent. 

11. It was, however, not sufficient to create an appropriate legal framework for 
international relations. It was essential that all States should strictly respect 
those rules. Experience in applying the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations 
of 1961 showed that there were instances where the rules of international diplomatic 
law and, in particular, the provisions of the Vienna Convention, were violated. 
Some countries justified such violations by citing the existence of domestic 
administrative regulations, although under the Vienna Convention of 1961 the special 
guarantees which it provided for embassies and missions and their diplomatic 
personnel took precedence over the guarantees given under any other set of legal 
rules. Non-observance of its basic provisions by some States, in particular States 
parties to the Vienna Convention of 1961, had often led to serious disagreements 
and complications in relations between States. Effective action should therefore 
be take~ to ensure strict observance of the Convention by all States. 

I ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
English 
Page 5 

(Mr. Buben, Byelorussian SSR) 

12. It would also be useful to collect and disseminate the experience gained by 
States in applying the Vienna Convention of 1961 and, in that connexion, it would 
be ~dvisable to retain the item on the agenda of the General Assembly and to try 
to lncrease the number of States parties. To that end, it would also be desirable 
to request the Secretary-General to transmit to States Members periodically, 
perhaps every three or four years, a questionnaire relating to the implementation 
of the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations of 1961, placing special emphasis 
on instances of the violation of the Convention in practice. The replies of 
States could form the basis of analytical reports to be prepared by the Secretary
General; the periodic consideration of such reports by the General Assembly would 
promote stricter observance of the Vienna Convention of 1961 and an increase in 
the number of States parties, and would create the necessary conditions for the 
complete elimination of violations of the rules of international law. 

13. Experience in applying the Vienna Convention of 1961 had also shown that 
there were certain areas of relations behreen States which required additional 
regulation. That was especially true of the functions and status of the diplomatic 
courier. In the replies of some Member States to the Secretary-General's 
questionnaire (A/31/145 and Add.l), it was stated that the diplomatic courier had 
already been defined in article 27 of the Vienna Convention. However, 
articles 27 and l+O of that Convention defined the functions of the diplomatic 
courier only in very general terms. Moreover, other provisions concerning the 
status of the diplomatic courier were to be found in articles 35 and 54 of the 
Vienna Convention on Consular Relations of 1963, in articles 28 and 42 of the 
Convention on Special Missions of 1969, and in articles 27, 57 and 81 of the 
Vienna Convention of 1975 on the Representation of States in Their Relations with 
International Organizations of a Universal Character. However, in none of those 
provisions was there a definition of the diplomatic courier, much less a 
definition of the status, privileges and immunities of the diplomatic courier. 
For all those reasons, the elaboration of a separate international legal instrument 
on that question would be an essential and important contribution to the regulation 
of diplomatic relations among States. 

14 · It was not a question of in any way amending or revlslng the provisions of the 
Vienna Convention of 1961, but of confirming and developing them in the light of 
modern practice in the diplomatic courier service. As other delegations had 
already pointed out, there was also a need for standardization of the rules 
relating to the diplomatic bag not accompanied by diplomatic courier, a very common 
practice among States. In his delegation's opinion, the international instrument 
designed to regulate the status of the diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag 
could take the form of an additional protocol to the Vienna Convention on 
Diplomatic Relations of 1961, on the provisions of which it would be based. That 
protocol should reflect all the rules defining the privileges and immunities of 
the diplomatic courier, the status of premises used by him and the procedure for 
the termination of his functions, as well as the status of the diplomatic bag. 
During the consideration of that question, a number of delegations had expressed 

I ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
English 
Page 6 

(Mr. Buben, Byelorussian SSR) 

concern that any modification of the Vienna Convention might be prejudicial. 
Those fears seemed unfounded, since it was not a question of changing the text of 
that Convention, but simply of developing it through well-considered additions. 

15. His delegation considered that the drafting of such a protocol should be 
entrusted to the International Law Commission, which had prepared the drafts of 
the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations of 1961 and other related documents. 
In their replies, some Member States had expressed doubts regarding the ability 
of the Commission to prepare such a draft protocol, given its~eavy programme of 
work. His delegation considered that the Commission could prepare the draft 
protocol in a relatively short space of time, in view of the fact that the basic 
norms to be included in any rules relating to the status of the diplomatic courier 
and the diplomatic bag were already contained in the comments and observations 
submitted by Member States. It would also facilitate the work of the Commission 
if as many States as possible submitted their observations and comments on the 
question in the near future. His delegation did not share the doubts expressed 
during the debate regarding the usefulness of such comments. In support of that 
view, he cited the position adopted by the United Nations on similar questions 
during the past three years. 

16. Undoubtedly, the elaboration and adoption of such an international instrument 
would make a constructive contribution to the codification and progressive 
development of international diplomatic law and would strengthen co-operation and 
the development of friendly relations among States, in accordance with the 
purposes and principles of the United Nations Charter. It was for that reason 
that his delegation was one of the sponsors of draft resolution A/C.6/3l/L.l6. 

17. Mr. MATHIAS (India) said that his delegation attached great importance to 
the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations of 1961 which not only codified the 
generally recognized rules of diplomatic law, but also further strengthened and 
developed diplomatic relations. To date, 116 States had acceded to that Convention, 
and his delegation urged those States which had not yet become parties to it to 
do so. 

18. lfuile there was no need to amend the Convention, there should be further 
elaboration of the rules relating to certain questions covered in that instrument, 
such as the question of the diplomatic courier, which was dealt with in article 27. 
There had been instances where diplomatic couriers had been hindered in the normal 
performance of their duties, and his delegation felt that the International Law 
Commission should draw up new rules in that regard. The elaboration of a protocol 
relating to the status of the diplomatic courier and the unaccompanied diplomatic 
bag did not mean the granting of fresh privileges, but rather the development and 
concretization of the rules agreed to in the Vienna Convention. 

19. His delegation also supported the idea that Member States should be invi~ed 
periodically to give their views on the implementation of the Convention, as ~ts 
observance was essential to the maintenance of normal relations between States. 

20. It was for those reasons that his delegation had joined the sponsors of draft 
resolution A/C.6/3l/L.16, which he hoped would be adopted by consensus. 

I ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
Enc;lish 
Pase 7 

21. Ur · SHILATI (Iran) saiu that one of the ::;rea test developrr:ents in tb.e history 
of diplo;-rcatic relations had been the conclusion of the Vienna Convention on 
Diplomatic Relations on 8 April 1961. Fifteen years had passed since that time and 
yet that importaE L instnuent, so fundan;ental to the regulation of diplomatic 
relations and so ~nuch in harmony ~-rith the spirit of the United Nations Charter, had 
stood the test of time. 

22. Eis Goverm,Jent considered the Vienna Convention to be a vital instruuent 
e:,uaranteein5 the ordered functioning of diplomatic relations betveen States. 
~onsequently, his delegation attached great importance to the strict observance and 
lmplementation of the Convention. J.Joreover, universal acceptance of the Convention 
was not only indispensable, but in1perative in the political life of States. The 
proper i1~1pleuentation of the Drovisions of the Convention and the adherence of as 
~lany States as possible would.- serve to il:lprove the political atmosphere of the 
lnternational community. he a~=::reed, hovever, more cietailed reg'J.lations should be 
elaborated ~-rith regard to certain questions covered in the Convention, such as the 
status of the diplo,~rJatic courier. Consequently, his delegation supported draft 
resolution A/C. 6/31/L.l6 and expressed the hope that it 1-rould be adopted by 
consensus. 

23 · Mr · SHIGE'l'A (Japan) said that his delegation attached sreat importance to the 
Vienna Convention on-Diplomatic Helations of 1961 and believed it useful to urge 
States ~-rhici1 had not yet clone so to become parties to the Convention, although the 
Convention was bindin~ upon those States too since it was the codification of 0 , 

existing law. 

24. however, his delegation was not entirely convinced of the need to study the 
status of the diplomatic courier and the diplornatic bag not accompanied by 
diplomatic courier. The status of the courier and the diplomatic bap: vras defined 
in article 27 of the Vienna Convention in reasonably clear terms, and the 
development or concretization of that article should be undertaken with care so 
that its normative character would not be impaired. Given the limited nlL>nber of 
vie•-rs submitted to the Secretary-General by Hember States in accordance with 
General Asse1:1bly resolution 3501 (XXX), and the limited time available to the 
Co~nittee to discuss the issue, he did not consider that the stage had been reached 
Hhere the Cormnittee could pronounce definitely on the advisability of studying the 
status of the diplomatic courier and diplomatic bag not accompanied by diplomatic 
courier. 

25. In paragrapn 4 of draft resolution A/C.6/31/L.l6, it ~-ras proposed that the 
question of the status of the diplonatic courier and the unaccompanied diplomatic 
bag should be referred to the International Lavr Commission. Hm-rever, his 
delegation had doubts regarding the advisability of such action, on t~-ro accounts. 
Firstly, given the already heavy ac;enda of the C01rmission, the referral of that 
question to it might disrupt the order of priority of the iteliJS before it. 
Secondly, his delegation believed that a mat";;er should be referred urp;ently to the 
Commission only when there vas a ree.sonable measure of agreement arr.ong !l.ember 
States as to the advisability of undertaking the elaboration of rules on the 
question and the content of the 1vork to be accomplished, •·rhich, in his opinion, 

/ ... 



A/C.6/31/SR.66 
Lnglish 
Page 8 

(i-ir. Shir,eta, Janan) 

Has not so in the current instance. His delegation expressed the hope that the 
sponsors of draft resolution A/C. 6/31/1.16 would forraulate the draft in a nmnner 
l·lhich would be acceptable to all delegations. 

28. ilr. GODOY (Parae;uay) said that there was a contradiction in draft resolution 
A/C. 6/31/1.16. In pexar;raph 5 o£' thc:.t draft, the Secretary-General was requested 
to subuit to the General Asser,lbly at its thirty-third session an analytical report 
on ways ancl 1neans to ensure the implementation of the Vienna Convention on 
Diplouatic Relations of 1961, taking into account the results of the study by the 
International Law Comrc1ission. However, paragraph 4 did not specify the period of 
tii"'le vri thin vlhich the COELrnission vms to cor:tplete such a study, but simply requested 
it to study the question "at the appropriate time;;. 

AGBI.JDA ITEM 109: REPORT ON TH:L COMill'ITEE ON RI;LATID:i'oTS \:ITII TET: I:OST COUNTRY 
(A/31/26; A/C.6/31/G) (continued) 

27. I'Ir. QUAZILBASII (Pakistan) said that the vJOrk of the Comni ttee on Relations 
-vrith the Host Country during the past year had been devoted largely to 
consideration of the increasingly frequent acts of violence <lirected against 
missions accredited to the United Nations in J:~evr York, particularly the missions of 
the third uorld and socialist countries. His ovm country 1 s I'1lission had twice been 
subjected to acts of vandalism and its personnel had frequently received threats. 

2u. The creation of a peaceful atr,10sphere for the working of the missions and 
their personnel vas the responsibility of the host country. Eis delegation 
therefore supported the recomnendations of the Committee on Relations with the 
host Country urging the host country to take effective and concrete measures 
·Hithout any further delay in order to prevent the recurrence of terrorist an(!_ 
other crirainal acts detrimental to the security of missions, the safety of their 
personnel and the inviolability of their property. Eis delegation fully supported 
the view that effective measures should be taken against the illegal activities of 
organizations v1hich instigated and encouraged acts of Yiolence against foreirm 
missions and their personnel, and also er,lphasized that the authorities of the host 
country should take all necessary measures to apprehend, prosecute and. nunish 
those guilty of such criminal acts. 

29. i,Jr. SIAGE (Syrian Arab Republic) said his delegation had studied carefully the 
reuort of the Committee on Relations with the Host Country (A/31/26). His 
deiegation attached great importance to the 1-mrk of that CorrLrni ttee, since the 
results of its efforts helped to facilitate the normal conduct of business by 
missions. Although r.:1issions should respect the la1-rs and regulations of the host 
country, the latter should take the necessary steps to ensure the security of 
missions against all acts of violence. Several missions had been threat:ned by 
organizations in the pay of foreign Pm·rers, including the Zionist terrorlst 

entl. tv Eis delercation urrred the Government of the host country to tal<:e the . h 
.; • a ~ • · d unlS 

necessary steps to check the illegal activities of those org2.nlzat2ons an P 

the individuals guilty of such acts. 

; ... 



A/C.6/31/SR.66 
.Gn,:;lish 
?a;;e 9 

30. llr. BOJILOV (Lulc;aria) said that the question of the security of missions and 
the saf'ety of their personnel had been c;i ven hi~:.h priority in the list of ite;:s to 
be cousiciered by the CorJJmi ttee on Eelations vrith the Host Country. His delegation 
reg~etfully noted thc"t, as the report of that Committee (A/31/26) sho-vred once 
ac;aln, acts of terror, violence and harasm,:ent continued to be cmm1i tted a£"ainst 
;:issions accredited to the United lTations. It SlJfficed to :coint out that, -~in 1976 
a~~ne, the Cm11 :it tee llccO. considered seven cases at the request of der,:ber States, 
wrnle 21 cases haci been broubht to its attention at the request of .ie;o1ber States. 
In fact, cri:;1inal acts hc:d been coE:mitted ar;ainst seven nissions. 

31. On t1-ro occasions, on 5 ;,larch and 6 April 1976, the Corm-:-_ittee h,:cG. strongly 
condenned those ter:corist acts ana ha.d urge:t the host country to take all necessary 
Qeasures in order to ensure the security of missions and their )ersonnel, and 
especially to aiJpre:Oenl'l, prosecute and punis~~ those ~~uilty of criHinc:cl acts 
cou.uitted 2.:_;e.inst missions. It 1ms worth nentionin,a; th2~t those Jecisions of the 
CormHittee 118_(, been aJ.opted by consensus. 

~2. If the current report of the Committee was coLpared oy that subuittecl in 1975, 
l t 1-ras clear th::;.t the nlli!lber of acts of terror, violence anL1 harass!llent h2-d 
lncreased in 197G. In 1975, the Cmrrrr1i ttee had considered six ce.ses and three had 
been brought to its attention, vrhereas in 1976 it h:td consic.ereu seven c8,Ses and 
21 had been bron;:·;ht to its attention. That did not ir;1ply t~E:ct in 1978 the host 
country had not taken any c::easures to ensure the security of 11iss::.ons and the 
safety of' their personnel, but it did iJ·lply that on several occasions it had failed 
to ensure their security. 'rhe host country had sought to justify its position by 
referrins to the difficulties involved in applyine; its federal lec;islation, but his 
delegation '>-~ished to reiterate its vie1v that those difficulties could not be 
invoked as an e:ccuse for failinc; to comply with oblifations under international 
lav. The principle of the primacy of international 12-1-r had been coc"lifieo_ in the 
Vienna Convention on the Lm; of Treaties and had been referred to several tir::es by 
the International Court of Justice. SiT,lilarly, articles 23 (b) and 28 of the 
Convention on the Representation of States in their Relations l·rith Interm'"tional 
Ore;anizations of a Universal Character established the obligation of the host 
country to take all appropriate 11~easures to prevent any attack on diplor,_ats and 
their freeclofll and dignity and, in the case of an attack, to take all appr07Jriate 
steps to prosecute and punish those uho had COLliilitted it. In tlJP,t connexion, his 
lielegation noted the assurances given by the coi-,lpetent authorities of the host 
country and wished to associate itself vith the appreciation e:cpressed by the 
Corr,;;;ittee for the work of the =.revT York City CourJission. 

33. ~lr. BERESNEV (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Re7Jublic) said that the report of 
the Coramittee on Relations l·rith the I-=ost Country and the st2teE2ents by various 
delegations showe<I that the conc:_itions in which <Iiplomats perfor:ned t11eir functions 
in :!\Jew York continued to be difficult. In 1976 serious acts had occurred 'iThich 
Vloj 2ted the norins of international lmv relating to cl_iplorratic illr-,mnity and 
offences h"'d been committeci against various missions -vrhich constituted a threat to 
their diplomatic personnel. Ilis delegation -vrisl1ed to drmr attention once a;ain to 
the incident involvin; shots fired at the Riverdale building used by the :nissions 
of the Soviet Union, the Byelorussian SSR and the Ukrainian SSR on 26 February 

/ ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
English 
Pa.c;e 10 

(~E~£~Sncv, Eyelorussian SSR) 

and the inciL1ent wnich ho.d taken place in ;.]anhattan in April. 'l'hosc incidents 
indicated an escalation of the violence against Soviet diplosats and other Soviet 
citizens li vine in l':-eu York. 'me Ri vcrdale 1mildin~; had continued to be the target 
of Zionist demonstrations, 1-rhich had deteriorc.ted into clirect tnreats ar_~ainst the 
rersonnel. 

34. :Tm1erous fines had been imposed for infringePents of the parkin[~ regulations 
in cases 1rhere the vehicles had been parked in official _'JRTl<:inp; areas and had 
consequently not been blocldng traffic. His delegation recalled the1.t c.ccording to 
the nor .. 1s of international lmr, especially article 34 of the Vienna Convention on 
Diploiuatic Relations, cliplomatic agents accredited to a country vrere e:~:empt fro~·1 

all local dues and taxes, and there was consequently no bc.sis for i1:1.posinr-; the 
aforer;:entionecl. fines. The local authorities vere fully avrare of those norms, but 
nevertheless continued to intensify the fine campaign. Tnat situation was 
a.::;'ravated by the activities of the local press, which did nothing to help improve 
tne conu.itions in vhich missions had to function. He pointed out that in his 
country fines uere not i;r:.posed on diplonatic vehicles parked in special areas. 

35. T·ne vrar against crir-:.e depended largely on the applicl".tion of punitive 
provisions. The assurances of the United States Goverru1ent that it vas doing 
everythin;:; 1-ri thin its pmrer could not be believed if at the sas1e time no punishment 
Has ;,Jeted out to the criirlinals vrho, uoreover, d.id not hic3e their identity. 
Diplonats and their fa;.li.lies continued to be hara.ssed uhile the police did nothing 
to prevent such harassment. That siBply encouraged the commission of furthP.r acts 
of that type. The authorities of the host country could not claim tnat they vere 
respectin2, the ri:;ht to freedm: of speech, since in fact the terrorist acts and 
threats r::erely i:lade it difficult for diplor:J.ats to perforu their functions freely. 
The host country had not abided by the tern.s of its ap;ree::1ent with the United 
1iations or the Vienna Convention of 1961. Furthermore, there -vras the 1972 Federal 
Act for the Protection of Forei~n Officials and Official Guests of the United 
States, 1-rhose strict impleiJientation 1rould end the current abnorr:1al situation. 

36. He recalled that in paragraph 5 of resolution 3498 (xx=~), the General Assembly 
had urged the host country to continue to iBplement fully and effectively its Act 
for the Protection of Foreign Officials and Official Guests of the United States 
and, in particular, to tal;:e all appropriate measures to make certain that 
der.10nstrations and picketing, especially where there l·ras reason to believe that 
they i:1ight be acc011panied by violence or mi c;ht prevent the conduct of normal 
business of Hissions to the United Nations, were held in conformity vrith the 
aforer.1entioned lavr and closely !Ylonitored by the police. Unfortunately, that 
resolution, like ,,mny previous resolutions, hacl been ignored. :Tis country believed 
that it wGuld be useful to appeal to the States parties to the Vienna Convention, 
particularly those in vrhose territories the headquarters of international 
orcanizations 1-rere situated, to apply its provisions strictly. 

37. In conclusion, he stressed the importance of the vork of the Committee on 
Helations vrith the host Country, particularly 1-rith regard to ensuring the 
functioning of Tt!issions and the safety of their personnel. 

I ... 



1'1./C.S/Jl/.TL,-
:Cnslish 
Pa~e 11 

30. l.!r. ICAP.e;rAl'JOVIC ( Yur:oslavi a) said that, in the year covered by its repc ::; 
(A/31/26), the Cmu;1i ttee on Relations llith the liost Country had. devoted most of its 
attention to the question of the security of missions anc_ the safety of their 
personnel. There had been a nm1ber of attacks against nissions and their 
IJersonnel in t,Flt period, althoug!1 the authorities of tl1e host country hac!_ taken 
so1,1e :neasures to prevent such acts. On the other hand, it should be noted that 
adequate measures had not been tal-;:en to e.pprehend and punish the perpetrators of 
those terrorist acts. 

39. The previous year, his delegation had cited a nw1lber of attacks ag:ainst its 
Per:,lanent i2ission. In tha.t connexion, it ha<i expressed the hope that strong 
Heasures >wulcl be taken vri th a vieH to prevent ins both the perpetre"tion and the 
preparation of terrorist acts ancl that the per~oetrators of such cri.·Jinal acts w-ould 
be apprehended ami adequately punished. his dele,;ation 's c~issatisfaction with the 
ir,lpunity enjoyed in practice by the perpetrators of the afore1,1entioned terrorist 
o.cts was all the ;reater because it had repeatedly clrmm the attention of the host 
country to the terrorist e;roups fro:;, vrhose ranks those cri::1inals vere recruited. 
~~e therefore insisted that enerc_;etic Y11easures should be taken for the purpose of 
apprehendin; the terrorists and l.Jetinc; out to ther.1 exedplary punishment. 

40. In that connexion, it should be noted tlw.t, accordinr~ to the lm-rs of the 
United States, as vrell as the lavrs of all other countries, the preparation of a 
cri:.1inal or terrorist act 1-ras prohibited and punishable. He therefore co.lled upon 
the United States authorities to ban the activity of terrorist groups and 
organizations enc;aged in carryins out such acts, esr:ecially since they vere ?asc::.st 

groups whose ideologies and activities were oriented tmrards the commission of 
crimes and terrorist acts. 

41. He expressed his delegation's satisfaction >·ri th the attention devoted in the 
report and recornrr"endations of the Committee to the serious problem of parking of 
diplomatic vehicles. He expressed the hope that the authorities of the host 
country would shovr due understanding of the problem, take r,1easures aimed at 
increasing the number of diplomatic parking spaces in the streets of lJew York, and 
discontinue the practice of issuing sunmonses to diplomats, since that practice had 
proved to be ineffective and had merely provol~ed unnecessary misunderstandings 
between diplomats and citizens of the City of New York. 

42. His delegation hoped that the authorities of the host country and the 
diplomatic community would implement all the recommendations of the Co~mittee, a 
course which would, no doubt, enable the members of the diplomatic corr~unity to 
carry out their functions more easily and render their stay in Nev York more 
pleasant. 

45. Mr. FCVZHIK (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that the Committee on 
Relatio~s with the Host Country had attached great importance during the current 
year to the security of missions and their staffs and had devoted three meetings 
to the consideration of acts of terrorism committed during that period, including 
the shooting incidents of February and April. A fourth attack of that kind had 
been made against the building used by the Missions of the Soviet Union, 

I ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
:Cnglish 
?age 12 

(iir. Pov1hik, Ukrainian SSR) 

Byelorussia c.nd the Ukraine, fortunately without any casualties, but there were no 
c;uarantees that such attacks 110uld not recur and there was no indication that 
future attacks -v1oul6. have the same fortunate result. The shootinc; incidents 
constituted a scandalous violation of the generally recognized principles of 
international law because they represented an attack on the lives of 
representatives of foreic;n States accredited to the United Nations. As for the 
lec;al provisions underlyinc; the oblic;ations and undertakings assumed by the host 
country vis-a-vis the i''issions of Hember States, the Sixth CoJ11Ini ttee had stressed 
on various occasions the importance of the Federal La1·r on the protection of foreign 
officials and official guests of the United Hations, of 1972. Siuilarly, in 
resolutions adopted at the tvrenty-seventh, ti·renty-eic;hth, twenty-ninth and 
thirtieth sessions the General Assembly had urged the host country to adopt more 
effective measures to ensure the protection of missions and their staff so that 
they could perforn their w·ork under nor!11al conditions. 

44. In those resolutions an appeal had been made to the host country to adopt all 
t!1e necessary measures to apprehend, prosecute and punish those r;uilty of criminal 
acts ac;ainst r11issions and their staff. Unfortunately, those resolutions h2d not 
been properly ii'lplementeci. His delegation hoped th<".t the United I1Tations would 
adopt the necessary measures in that respect. Indeed, there had been an increase 
in the violations of the richts of missions because in 1976 there had occurred, 
besides the attacl\:s already nentioned against the Soviet, Byclorussian and 
Ukrainian i·iissions, a bomb attack against the Cuban i·1ission and other attacks 
against the l·iissions of India and Eongolia. If the authorities did not adopt 
effective ~~wasures, including the necessary investigations and the apprehension and 
prosecution of the guilty parties, those acts directed against diplomatic staff 
vould remain unpunished. 

45. Acts of that kind vrere the work of individuals belonc;ing to organizations and 
groups -vrhich ,,rere trying to obstruct the imrk of the United Nations and to prevent 
the adoption of decisions; they also prevented the consolidation of the atoosphere 
of co-operation, confidence and detente and prejudiced the naintenance of normal 
international relations. Such acts did not represent the feelin~s of the United 
States people who, like other peoples, favoured harmony and coexistence. It was 
impossible to understand hovr activities aimed at creating an abnormal situation and 
at causing harm to an organization like the United Nations could go unpunished. 
his ~elegation stressed the importance of recommendation (5) of the Conm1ittee on 
Relations -vrith the nost Country which urged the host country to take effective 
measures to prohibit illegal activities of organizations that organized, 
instigated, encouraged or engaged in the perpetre.tion of terrorist or other acts of 
violence against missions to the United Nations or their personnel. The General 
Assembly should adopt a similar appeal. 

46. As in previous years, the diplomatic corps in New York had had difficulties in 
the matter of parking. They had been given repeated fines, often unjustified. 
Press reports on that subject had tended to discredit the diplomatic corps 
vis-a-vis the population of the City of ?Jew York. 

j ... 



A/C.6/3l/SR.66 
Ene;lish 
Page 13 

(Mr. Povzhik, Ukrainian SSR) 

1
17 · Finally, ne supported the recommendations of the Committee on Relations with 
the Host Country v1hich had accomplished useful llOrk and he felt that the General 
Assembly should extend its mandate. 

46. lir. FIFOO'l' (United Kingdom) recalled that the Committee on Relations w·ith the 
Host Country had been established in 1971 with the mandate laid down in 
paragraph 7 cf General Assembly resolution 2819 (XXVI). Hith that mandate, it had 
been a function, and a function to lvhi ch the Conuui ttee had devoted much of its 
tir!le: to exanine 1natters of complaint. And understandably and justifiably, the 
Comnnttee had emphasized how serious were the attacks against missions and their 
staff vrhi ch had occurred during the year. His delegation joined in the 
condemnation of those deplorable incidents. 

119. Hm-rever, without in any way detracting from the concern to which those 
incidents gave rise and v.ri thout detracting from the other questions vhich the 
Committee had asked the authorities of the host country to examine, he must drav 
attention to a further factor. There was a viev, 1videly shared in the Committee, 
that the report 1wuld give an unbalanced picture if it appearecl to suggest that 
relations betveen missions and their personnel in the host country lvere confined 
to occasions on >·rhich the security of missions was imperilled or to the aftermath 
of attacl;:s and violent demonstrations against such missions. There was also the 
generally held view that appropriate assurances had been e;iven by the authorities 
of the host country and that useful neasures had been taken by those authorities 
for security of missions and their personnel. That opinion was reflected in the 
reco.r.unendations of the Com:nittee on Helations with the Host Country. 

50. The report of the Committee had been submitted late in 1976 because it hcl.d 
taken a long time for its merabers to agree on the ;nanner in vhich their 
recouh~endations should be expressed. Eventually, they had been adopted by 
consensus in the terms set out in paragraph 65 of the report. 1ihen listening to 
the statements beine; made in the debate, the Sixth Committee shoulcJ. bear in mind 
that the Con:ni tt ee on Relations with the host Country hac: adopted all its 
recommendations by consensus. IIis delegation VTould find it very surprising if 
any me1nber of the Committee on Relations ~Vith the Host Country were to take a 
different position at the present stae;e, thus going baclt on an agreement reached 
barely a month previously. 

51. .His delegation vmuld suggest to the Sixth Corrm1ittee th11.t the outcome of the 
present debate should be a resolution >·rhich followed the recommendations so 
laboriously constructed, The Co.rr.mi ttee on Relations vi th the Host Cou:r:.try 1vas 
broadly representative of the r:-J.eDlbership of the United Nations and the 
reco;Mlendations had been accepted by consensus, as the representative of Bulgaria 
had pointed out. His delegation lTaS therefore prepared to IVOrlt for a resolution 
>vhich reflected all the recoa'll.endations and he vas confident that the Sixth 
CorJmittee would adopt them, bearing in mind that all the members of the Co;nmittee 
on Relations lvi th the Host Country had adopted them by consensus. 

52. IIr. NYAMDO (I{ongolia) said that, in spite of the repeated resolutions of the 
General Assembly and the decisions anG.. recommendations of the Committee on 
Relations with the Host Country, acts of violence continued to be perpetrated 

j ... 



A/C.6/31/SR.66 
English 
Page 14 

(l'ir. ~Jyamdo, }'o_ngolia) 

against the rnissions accredited to the United Nations. Among the raos t receu t of 
those attacks, mention should be made of the shots which had been fired against the 
Soviet liission in the month of April 1976. The Ivlonc;olian Hission had also been the 
victi1n of a number of acts of vandalisr,l in recent years. Those acts infringed the 
norms of international law and interfered with the norr.1al perfonnance of the duties 
of ,,,issions. They -vrere serious crimes 1vhich must be severely punished by the host 
country, "l·rhich was obliged, under international la1v, to detain and prosecute their 
perpetrators. Ho•·rever, CJ.t the nloment, such acts remain to a large extent 
unpunished, a fact which proved that the efforts of the competent authorities were 
far froa being effective. His delegation vigorously condemned all kinds of acts 
uf violence against any mission and urged the host country to adopt effective 
meRsurcs to put an end to those acts and to punish the guilty parties. In that 
respect, he emphasized the importance of parac;raph 5 of the recommendG.tions of the 
Co,,mlittee on Relations with the host Country. Finally, he felt that the nandate of 
t.he Co;mnittee should be extended. 

53. !·Jr. BLUi•i (Israel), speaking in exercise of his right of reply, said that 
reference had been r:1ade during the discussion to ''Zionist hooliganism' 7

• In a 
democratic society a great variety of legi tir,mte channels vrere open to those \·rho 
vishecl to indicate their displeasure with the policies of their Goverl1P1ent or of 
other Governments. Recourse to violence was not a1:1.ong those legitimate means of 
protest and his delegation unreservedly rejected and condemned that outrageous form 
of protest. In May 1976, l1ir. Yiz;al All on, the Israeli Deputy Prime l1inister and. 
J1inister of Foreign Affairs, had himself denounced in unequivocal terms the threats 
issued by the frince group lee_ by Haobi l~ahane anO. had sai:.. that those shaYeful 
threats lt!aG.e by an irresponsible group >lust not be confused with the efforts o:f' tne 
Jeuish people to ensure the freedom of Soviet Jevrry to emi 0;rate in accordance 1ri th 
tlle Declaration of HuEan Ri::c;l1ts and Final Act of the I~elsinki Conference, "l·:hic!1 had 
been signed by the Govern:l!lent of the USSR. 

54. The Goverm.1ent of Israel unequivocally rejected. any foEl of terroris!.G by 
v11or.1ever it -vras carried out. rlis dele3ation had full confidence in the Ar:•erican 
syste-u of len-T and hoped the.t offenders a:::;ainst the inu,unity of forci,r;n r1issions and 
their personnel vould oe punished in accordance 1-rith the provisions of the l~'m. 

55. At the sai:le tine, l1is u.eleE;ation 1rished to protest against the :'_!rovocative 
insinuations contained in so:ne of the stateHents maue on the present ite2n. The 
11is sion of Israel had been subj ectecl on more tJ.1an one occasion in the p2.st to 
threats of violence but it hc.c3_ never occurred to the Isra.eli ilission to re::;.ct to 
those threats by calling nm-,1es all tl1e States vrhich pursued violently bellicose 
anti-Israeli policies 'coth inside and outsiC.e the United Jations. 

56. ;.lr. I~iiD (Observer for the Palestine Liberation Orga:1ization), spea~cing in 
e::ercise of his right of reply, lJointed. out that the or,;anization directed by Rabbi 
Ka:O.ane enjoyed cor.rrlete free<ior1 of action in the Arab territories occuDied by 

Israel. 

57. 'rhe Cl,AIRliAiT announcecl that lJurundi, L::,ypt, Liberia, :Oyelorussian s
6
sR an/d 

6 Sm
1
;alia 11aQ. joined. the: sponsors of the clraft resolution in doc11c1ent A/C. /31 L.l · 

Tl1e :::.teetinr·; rose at 12.55 p.n. 




